
200930 EMA ICC MENT Adopted Minutes  Company No. 2078271 

Page 1 of 8 
  

East Midlands Airport 
Independent Consultative Committee (ICC) 

Monitoring, Environment, Noise and Track (MENT) Sub-Committee 
Friday 30th September 2022 

Via MS Teams 
 

Present 

Independent Chair Mr G Liguori 

Independent Secretariat Mrs C Pull 

Organisation 

Leicestershire County Council Cllr T Pendleton (TP) 

Kings Newton Residents Association Mr S Leech (SL) 

Melbourne Civic Society Dr P Grimley 

PAIN – People Against Intrusive Noise Mr R Sutton (RS) 

WHICH Dr A Manhire (AM) and Mr I Jones 

Rushcliffe Borough Council Cllr A Edyvean 

SAVE Mr E Green (EG) 

Nottinghamshire County Council Cllr M Barney 

Loughborough University Mr A Timmis 

East Midlands Airport (EMA) 

Group Head ESG & Environmental Strategy Mr A Freeman (AF) 

Air Navigation Services Manager EMA Mr P Kay (PK) 

EMA Community Engagement Manager Ms C Hempson (CH) 

Group Flight Evaluation Unit (FEU) Advisor Ms D Patton (DP) 

Group Environment & Energy Manager Mr M Churley (MC) 

Head of Asset Development - Utilities, Energy & 
Environment 

Mr T Rix (TR) 

Future Airspace Manager Ms E Welch (EW) 

EMA Environmental Specialist Ms N Rushton (NR) 

Absent and Apologies 

DHL Aviation Mr A O’Neill 

EMA Commercial Director Mr C Lane (CL) 

 
The meeting commenced at 1000. 
 
   
1 Introduction and Apologies  
 

The Chair welcomed all to the meeting and apologies were recorded.  

2 Declaration of Interest  
 

No declarations of interest were reported.   

3 Minutes of the last meeting  



200930 EMA ICC MENT Adopted Minutes  Company No. 2078271 

Page 2 of 8 
  

 
The Committee approved the minutes of the last meeting as a true and 

accurate record of the meeting. 

 

3a Matters arising  
 

The Chair asked for comments on matters arising. 

EG requested that members be informed of any items or documents covered 

during ICC meetings that should be classified as confidential. 

The Chair agreed and requested that the airport consider how to manage this. 

He suggested that in the interim, members should treat everything as 

confidential until the process is agreed upon. 

Action: The airport to agree on a process for highlighting confidential 

information. 

All other actions are either complete or covered within the agenda for this 

meeting. 

 

4 An update by the Chair (including DRAC update)  
 

The Chair highlighted the appointment of a new Secretary of State for 

Transport along with a new aviation minister. This may mean that there may 

be changes to the previous Secretary of State’s brief.  

The working group and DRAC hope to have carried out a site visit arranged by 

the airport before the end of October. DRAC will have a separate meeting with 

the airport’s senior managers. A fuller update should be available by the next 

MENT.  

AM asked for an update on the new airport Managing Director. The Chair 

responded that this isn’t on today’s agenda and will be discussed at the next 

ICC general meeting. 

 

5 Water Management Update  

 
TR took members through the presentation that had been circulated in 

advance. 

TR highlighted that there has been proactive engagement on the river Trent 

pipeline works with DRAC. A visit from DRAC was due to take place during the 

first week of October, but this is now being rescheduled in line with the 

delayed works. 

Findings from the Atkins Report and AECOM model were discussed.  

Action (i): TR to share the Atkins report with MENT members as a confidential 

document.   

Action (ii): TR to consider how data from the AECOM model can be shared 

for the June 2023 MENT meeting. 

In addition to the new roles covered in the presentation, a Water Quality 

Specialist has also been appointed and is due to start in mid-October 2022. 

 



200930 EMA ICC MENT Adopted Minutes  Company No. 2078271 

Page 3 of 8 
  

TP thanked the airport for its commitment to this area and asked TR to define 

the phrase “long-term”.  

TR confirmed that the process has already started, and progress will be linked 

to the amount of data that can be collected over the winter. This is dependent 

on the winter weather.  It is likely to be one winter if we experience a typical 

winter, or two winters if we experience an atypical winter. 

RS seconded TP’s comments on progress and questioned how comparisons 

continue to be made when measures have changed from BOD (Biological 

Oxygen Demand) to TOC (Total Organic Compound). He asked for clarity on 

the difference between these measures. 

TR advised that the Water Asset Specialists within the team provide an 

excellent resource in this area. The Water Research Council (WRC) has been 

commissioned to carry out a large piece of work on this. TR will share useful 

information from this with any interested members.  

Action (iii): TR to share results from the research by Water Research Council 

(WRC) commissioned by the airport with members. 

RS also queried the delay to the flushing of the pipe to the river Trent. NR 

advised this should happen within the next few weeks. 

SL queried the length of time it takes to receive the results of the samples and 

asked if analysis could now be done in-house using the new resource. TR 

explained the different types of samples being taken and how the results are 

obtained.  

The Chair queried the differing types of data and how they correlate to one 

another. 

TR confirmed that the lab data is the most accurate and the correlation is quite 

accurate. As the water quality monitors are improved, the accuracy of the data 

will also improve. 

 

6. Noise Action Plan (NAP) 2024-2028  

 
 

 
A paper and presentation were circulated and taken as read. 
 
Before going through the presentation, AF explained the reason for the 
presentation and shared that a project team has been put in place to work on 
a draft of the new NAP which will be shared with members this winter or early 
spring 2023.  
 
DEFRA has now issued guidance which has given a deadline for draft NAPs 
to be received by DEFRA from airports by 1st September 2023. 

 



200930 EMA ICC MENT Adopted Minutes  Company No. 2078271 

Page 4 of 8 
  

 
AF took members through a set of questions which had previously been 
circulated and requested that members feed back any views by 2nd October. 
  
AF highlighted concerns around the fact that DEFRA guidance requires the 
airport to base the NAP 2024-2028 on noise maps for 2021, which will be 
compared to noise maps from 2016 and the previous rounds of noise 
mapping.  AF advised that the airport is considering providing readers of the 
NAP with additional context by introducing supplementary noise related 
performance measures and asked for feedback from members. 
 
The Chair questioned the usage of the noise maps from 2021. Would this 
create an artificial set of baselines? AF advised that this would be the case. 
The Chair will raise this with UKACCS to see if they can lobby government 
and appreciates that the airport is aware of this issue. 
 
PG thanked AF for the opportunity to be involved in the next NAP and clarified 
the major themes that members would like to see included. Members would 
like to see an emphasis on specific actions around loud noise events, 
particularly at night.  There has been an increase in the number of loud noise 
events. He raised concerns about the Wilson noise monitor and asked why 
there were no reports at all from this monitor.  
 
AF advised that all these points have been noted and will be considered and 
asked if other members agree. All members agreed. 
 
RS echoed the points made above by PG and the Chair. 
 
PG requested numbers be shared, rather than the use of “average”. 
 
EG reinforced what other members said. 
 
AF asked members to share their priority issues.  
 
RS brought up the issue of older aircraft. AF has noted this. 
 
PG stated that noise controls (night noise, departing and arriving) must be 
effective and not “soft” as they currently are.  
 
EG requested very clear objectives to be shared in the report and for the data 
in the plan to be used for an annual review. 
 
SL would like more investigation on the noise levels of arrival aircraft. 
 
AF asked if training flights should be included in the next NAP. Members 
agreed this point should be included. 
 
AF requested that members send any views to him by 21st October 2022. 
 
SL asked for an update on the progress of the Melbourne noise monitor. AF 
confirmed that a planning application has been submitted to South Derbyshire 
District Council. 
 

 

 



200930 EMA ICC MENT Adopted Minutes  Company No. 2078271 

Page 5 of 8 
  

EG asked if the document can be shared with the community. AF stated that 
the topic can be discussed with constituents, but papers should not be 
circulated prior to public consultation of material on the NAP draft being 
produced to avoid confusion. 
 
TP suggested that noise penalties be brought in at the decibel level of 90dB 
and the 3-minute take-off should be considered. 
 
Action: (i) Chair to consultant with UKACCs around their guidance to use 
noise mapping data from 2021 
 
Action: (ii) Members are to send their responses to the questions raised in the 
NAP paper circulated ahead of the meeting by 21st October 
 

7 Noise-related fees, charges and penalties  
  

A paper was circulated and taken as read. 
CL was unable to attend due to illness.  
 
AF talked through the main points of the document and will take members’ 
questions away.  The Chair thanked AF for stepping in. 
 
SL questioned why passenger and charter airlines have different charges. AF 
agreed that the impact of the aircraft is the same and that this point is included 
in the paper for consideration.  
 
AF stated that it’s important to refer to “night flights” rather than individual 
operators. 
 
EG questioned the scale of noise penalties. AF responded that the fines at 
East Midlands are higher than those at the other MAG airports and this must 
be considered when looking at penalties.  
 
RS questioned the approach to the rules on providers and do the fees apply to 
all operators. AF confirmed that this is the case. 
 
Action: The Chair will direct his questions by email following the meeting. 
 

 

8 Training flights  
 

A presentation was circulated and taken as read. 

PK talked through the presentation. 

RS asked if this presentation could be shared with the community. PK 

confirmed that it can be shared. CH confirmed the slides are available in the 

member portal. 

PG asked why only certain areas are classed as noise-sensitive areas.  

AF pointed out that Melbourne and Kegworth are counted as being on the 

extended centre line of the airport so it is unavoidable that inbound aircraft will 

fly over them. Thanks to the work carried out by PK and his team over the last 

six months, aircraft flying over Melbourne has reduced by approximately 90% 

 



200930 EMA ICC MENT Adopted Minutes  Company No. 2078271 

Page 6 of 8 
  

PG stated that the approach route seems to be inconsistent. 

PK stated that this is dependent on traffic patterns, traffic requirements, type of 

aircraft and transits through airspace to give opportunities to the General 

Aviation (GA) traffic. 

SL thanked the airport for the improvement but wants to understand why 

aircraft still occasionally fly over certain areas directly. There were two 

incidents of this at around 11am on the morning of the 1st and 7th of 

September 2022. 

PK will investigate this and feedback. He pointed out that safety is the top 

priority and sometimes routes and patterns must be adjusted by his team for 

this reason. 

Action: PK to investigate the two incidents of circuit training overflying Kings 

Newton at around 11am on the morning of the 1st and 7th of September 2022 

and come back to members with a response  

EG commented that there has been an improvement in this area post-

pandemic and hopes that this continues.  

The Chair thanked PK for the efforts made and the information provided. 

 
9 

Environment reports 
 

   
Including 
 

• Overview of recent airline engagement  

• 2022 H1 Fly Quiet League Table 
 
A presentation and papers were circulated and taken as read. There was also 
the late addition of the Sutton Bonington data. 
 
DP talked through the presentation and provided an update on the status of 
the planning application for the Melbourne Monitor. The link for the planning 
application will be shared with members as soon as it’s available. 
 
DP highlighted that there have been no 744 QC4 departures at night since the 
beginning of August 2022. DHL is looking to reduce the number of these 
aircraft in operation at EMA. 
 
SL raised an issue on take-offs in a westerly direction. Flights should be 
between Melbourne and Western on Trent, but passenger and freight aircraft 
are still flying over 78 Main Street, Kings Newton.  
 
PG added that part of Kings Newton fell within the NPR swathe and therefore 
any investigation into westerly departures along this route would show these 
flights as being ‘on track’ meaning any query about departure disturbance over 
King’s Newton would not be picked up on the statistics as being ‘off track’. 
 
The Chair asked if it was possible to provide more granular details on the 
swathes that would show the effect on the areas below. 
 

 

 



200930 EMA ICC MENT Adopted Minutes  Company No. 2078271 

Page 7 of 8 
  

DP responded that the data provided already has a good degree of granularity 
and that East Midlands Airport has much narrower swathes than other UK 
airports. Precision Based Navigation (PBN) will provide the opportunity in the 
future through FAS to make routes narrower and more accurate. 
 
Action (i): SL to provide DP with specific dates and times to investigate 
westerly departures overflying Main Street, Kings Newton and whether these 
are within the NPR. 
 
PG asked which airlines were responsible for examples of aircraft flying east 
of Wilson that were reported on.  AF suggested that sharing this level of 
information is not helpful as there must be a safe space for the airport to 
communicate with operators. There has been an open channel of 
communication with this operator and great improvements have been made 
and all data is shared in our league tables. 
 
MB thanked DP for the report and mentioned that over the last six months 
there has been a significant increase in communication and liaison between 
the airport and parish councils to the east of the airport (RW27 direction) such 
as Sutton Bonington, Gotham, and Thrumpton area.  He wanted to make 
members aware of these conversations.  
 
MB raised a question about the routes shown on the maps. 
 
DP advised that Noise Preferential Routes (NPR) are for departure routes 
only.  There are no specific defined arrival routes.  
 
PK added every arrival into the airport is separately assessed by the 
controllers and the approach into EMA will vary dependant on a range of 
conditions.   Arrival swathes will be wider due to traffic levels and landing 
sequences.  Arrivals generally close onto the Instrument Landing System (ILS) 
around 5-6 miles out on both easterly and westerly operations but there will be 
a variance on this. 
 
PK stated that he would be happy to host Air Traffic Control visits for anyone 
interested. 
 
Action (ii): CH to arrange a visit to ATC with PK for MB and any other 
interested MENT members. 
 
The Chair requested copies of the first 2 slides of the presentation. 
CH stated that the presentation is available in the member portal. 
 
DP highlighted a marked improvement from FedEx on the league table. 
 

10 Future Airspace update  
 

Papers were circulated and taken as read. 

EW talked through the headlines. 

 



200930 EMA ICC MENT Adopted Minutes  Company No. 2078271 

Page 8 of 8 
  

PG referenced the CAA document CAP1378 and requested that all route 

options within this document be considered.  

The Chair confirmed that the SRG date is 21st October 2022. 

11 AOB  
 

The Chair asked that he be copied into any ICC correspondence between 

members and the airport. 

The Chair asked the airport to notify members when new papers are added to 

the member portal 

PG was asked by Jim Smee (JS) to raise the issue of passenger parking in 

Diseworth. PG requested that this be added to the agenda for the next TEP 

meeting. 

As the TEP agenda is already written, The Chair requested that JS send the 

information to him and CH for a response.  

AF advised that this issue was discussed at length at a recent Parish Council 

Forum. AF agreed with the Chair’s suggestion above. 

Future agenda items 

The Chair talked through the current items and asked members to contact him 

if they feel these are still appropriate. 

Action: Members are to contact the Chair with any suggested future agenda 

items. 

The Chair thanked everyone for attending the meeting and for their 

contribution.  

 

 

12 Date of next MENT meeting(s) 
 

 

 • Friday 17th February 2023 

There being no further business the Chair declared the meeting closed at 

1215 

 

 


